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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Centrum Microcredit Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Centrum Microcredit Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as Ind AS financial
statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“ind AS™) prescribed under section
133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the Ind AS financial statements which describes the classification of
accounts as on March 31, 2020 with respect to the accounts which were overdue but standard as on
February 29, 2020 and to whom moratorium benefit has been granted. The staging of those accounts under
Ind AS as an March 31, 2020 is based on the days past due status as on February 29, 2020 in accordance with
the Reserve Bank of India COVID-19 regulatory package. Further, the extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic will impact the Company’s financial performance is dependent on future developments, which are
highly uncertain and the management estimate on recoverability of all other assets.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Chartered Accountants
Other information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Repaort, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other infermation and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If based on the work performed on the other information ebtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report,
we conclude that there is misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this auditors’
report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS
financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2018 included in these Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously jssued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the
year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 dated April 26, 2019 and April 20, 2018 respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by

LS.

Our opinion is not madified in respect of this matter.

Repaort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143{11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1%, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(Z) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpeses of our audit;

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020, and

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

i. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure 2";

. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:
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Chartered Accountants

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according teo the explanations given to us:

(1) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
guestion of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No,103523wW / W100048
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Centrum Microcredit Limited on the Ind AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given
to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report
that:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a year.
Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year
fer all the branches. However, physical verification of fixed assets located at corporate office could
not be performed due to unexpected lockdown on account of COVID-19. The reconciliation of the
physical verification report with the Fixed Asset Register will be done after the lockdown is lifted
and physical verification of Fixed Assets at corporate office is performed.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘property, plant and
equipment’). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

{(ii) The Company is a non-banking finance company, primarily engaged in the business of lending and does
not hold any inventories. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) The Company has granted Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD) to its fellow subsidiaries covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

(a) The terms and conditions of the aforesaid loans granted by the Company are not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of such loans has been
stipulated and the repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest are regular.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to

e o companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or other parties listed in the register maintained
AR A gz, under section 189 of the Act.
"-bt \\Ce"\
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Chartered Acconntant:

(iv) The Company has not entered intoc any transactions covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v)
(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x}

;

Further, as the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the business of financing, the
provision of Section 186 [except for subsection {1)] are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of
the Campany under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax (GST),
customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. During the year 2017-18,
sales tax, value added tax, service tax and duty of excise subsumed in GST and are accordingly
reported under GST.

Mo undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were
outstanding, at the year end, for a pericd of more than six months from the date they hecame
payable.

(b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, GST, customs
duty, excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or any dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing
from government.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were applied for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained, though idle funds which were not required for immediate utilisation were temporarily
invested in Mutual Funds but were ultimately utilised for the stated end use.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carred out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or any
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reperted during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such instance by the management except for instance of cash embezzlement by
loan officers of the Company amounting to Rs. 2.15 Lacs out of which an amount of Rs. 1.65 Lacs has

been recovered.

Managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the reguisite approvals mandated

'\ by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,
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Chartered Accountants

{xif} In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xili) All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of shares and fully convertible
debentures during the year and in our opinion, the requirement of section 42 of the Act have been
complied with and the amount raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.
During the year, the Company did not make preferential allotment of partly convertible debentures.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
the registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 103523W / W100048
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph Z(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Centrum Microcredit limited on the Ind AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Centrum
Microcredit Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recards,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
it opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

&

i
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company'’s
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of .collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference te financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

QOpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,103523W / W100048
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020

Company Overview

Centrum Microcredit Limited {formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited) ('the Company') was
incorporated on 31* August, 2016 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company cbtained
registration with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') on 8" October, 2017 as a non-deposit taking Non-Banking
Finance Company (NBFC-ND') and has got classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro
Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI') with effect from 9 October, 2017,

The Company is engaged primarily in providing microfinance services to the econamically weaker women
in rural areas of India who are enrolled as members and organized as Joint Liability Groups (WJLG'), where
gach member of the group guarantees tha lean repayment of the other members of the group. The Company
had its focused operations spread across 130 branches in the 9 States of Maharashtra, Gujarat, Odisha,
Eihar, Chhattisgarh, Haryana, Jharkhand, Rajasthan and West Bengal as at 31% March, 2020.

The Company had changed its name from Centrum Microcredit Private Limited to Centrum Microcredit
Limited w.e.f. 22" November, 2018, The Company's registration number under RBI is N-13.02206 and under
MCA is U67100MH2016PLC285378.

Significant accounting policies

a. Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Cempanies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time tc time) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the
powers conferred by Section 133 read with sub-section (1) of Section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013, In
addition, the guidance notesfannouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
are aiso applied along with compliance with other statutory promulgations that require a different treatment.
Any application guidance/clarifications/ directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are implemented as
and when they are issued/ applicable

The financial statements for the year ended 31¥ March, 2020 of the Company are the first financial
statements prepared in compliance with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1% April, 2018.

The financial statements upto the year ended 315 March, 2019, were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous
GAAP) and cther relevant provisions of the Act. The figures for the year ended 31% March, 2019 have now
been restated under Ind AS to pravide comparability. Refer note 44 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company.

b. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value, assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost
ic sell, net defined benefit liability/assets and share based payments.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, ar 3 based on the degres to which
the inpuls to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs ta the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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® Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at the reporting date:

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than guoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly and

» Level 3 inputs are unabservable inpults for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

€. Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division Ill to Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) applicable for Non-
Banking Finance Companies ("NBFC”) that are required to comply with Ind AS. The statement of cash flows
has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows', The
disclosure requirements with respect to items in the balance shest and statement of profit and loss as
prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Ind AS.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakh with two decimals as permitted
by Division Ill to Schedule lll to the Cornpanies Act. 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees
to two decimal places,

d. Business combination

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
fransferred by the Company for a business combination is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities assumed and the equity interests issued by the Company. Acquisition
costs are expensed as [ncurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their acquisition-date fair values. Goodwill is measured as excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and fair
value of any previous interest held, aver the fair value of the net of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net of identifiable assets acquired and liakilities assumed i in excess of the
aggregate mentioned above, the resulting gain on bargain purchase is recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI) and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve without routing the same through
othar comprehensive income.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations prospectively to business combinations
occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been
restated.

e. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation

QOn transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant
and eguipment recognised as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and eguipment.

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of PPE which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to
use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
Ioss when the asset is derecognized.
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expectad from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

f. Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses to
acquire the property, plant and equipment, Assets which are not ready for intended use are also shown
under capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule || of the Act. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of tangible
assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

Particulars Estimated useful life specified under
== Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013

Office equipments ~ l'oyesrs

Computer and accessories 3 years

Servers and netwarking G years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Assets individually costing ¥ 5 000 or less are fully depreciated/amortized in the year of purchase.

g. Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible
assets recagnised as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure an making the asset ready for
its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful
life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite life are
amortised over the useful economic life. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line methed te write
down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over the estimated useful lives. Intangible assets
comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three years unless It has a
shorter useful life. The Company's intangible assets consist of software with definite useful life. The cost of
intangible assefts acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognised.

h. Intangible assets under development
It includes assets not ready for the intended use and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related
incidental expenses.
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i. Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment
property and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffersd
an impairment |oss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested
for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there |s an indication that the asset may be impaired,

impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing valus in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
such deficit is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and logs as impairment loss and the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the
impairment loss recognized in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated tc such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

j- Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring the promised
goods or services to a customer. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognisss as
revenue the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation.

Interest and processing fee income on loans

Interest income is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument,

The calculation of the EIR includes all transaction costs and fees that are Incremental and directly attributable
to the acquisition of a financial instrument.

The Iinterest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. to the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expectad credit loss
allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets, the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount lzss the allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs)). The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired
assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the Interest income accrued on
credit impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written-off.

Investments in mutual funds are measurad at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Income from assignment transactions

Income from assignment transactions i.e. the present value of future excess interest spread is recognized
upfront net of related expenses when the related loan assets are de-recognised. Interest income is also
recognised on carrying value of the assets over the remaining period of such assets.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reportin

date.
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Fees and Commission income

Commission income on sale of insurance is recognized on a quarterly basis as per the agreed terms of the
contract. Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the services are
rendered as per agreed terms of the contract.

Other operational revenue
Other gparational revenue represents income eamed from the activities incidental to the business and is
recagnized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Marketing Income
Marketing income is recognised as and when the services are rendered as per the terms of the contract.

Other income and Expenses
Other income and expenses are recognised in the period they occur.

k. Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains a lease if the contract convays the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of
the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the oplions to extend ar terminate the lease befara the end aof the lease
term. ROU assats and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assels are deprecialed fram the commencemant date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liabilities are remeasured
at fair value at the balance sheat date with the corresponding impact considerad in the statement of profit
and loss as interest charge/ income.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymenis
have been classified as financing cash flows,
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The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company s an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative
adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and
the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement
date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Refer note 40 for the details of impact an transition.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term on the date of initial application

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application

4, Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the gssessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under
Ind AS 17.

I. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, Regular way purchase and sale of financial assels are recognised on frade-
date, the date on which the Company commils lo purchase or sell the assel,

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or
minus the transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial lizbility (other than financial asset or financial liability carried at fair value through
profit or loss). Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into three categories:

« fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

« fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or
« amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms including contractual cash flows.

For debt instruments, classification will depend on the business model in which the debt is held.

For equity instruments, classification will depend on whether the Company has made an imevocable election
gt the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income,

The classification requirements of financial assets are described below:

Debt instruments
Debt Instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's
perspective.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, whether the Company's objective is solely ta collect the contractual cash flows from the
assels or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows from the sale of asset. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purpeses), then the financial assets are
classified as part of 'other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Company
in determining the business mode| for the Company of assets include past experience an how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how risks are assessed and managed. Securities held for trading are held
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there s evidence of a recent aclual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These
securiies are classified in the 'other business model and measured at FYTPL. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios
into account.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. Interest includes
only consideration for the time value of money, cradit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that
is cansistent with a basic lending arrangement.

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the fallowing three
measurement categories:

Amortised cost Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where business model
of those cash flows represents solely payment of principal and interest ('SPPI'), and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. Tha carrying amount of these assets s adjusted by any expected
credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 35. Interest income from these financial
assels are recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets are measured at FVOC| when
the instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both callecting
contractuzl cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets meet the
SPPI test.

FVOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OC1). Interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCl are

reclassified to statement of profit and loss.
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Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FWVOCI are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets designated at FVTPL are carried in the balance sheet at
fair value with net changes in fair value presented as other gains/ losses in the statement of profit and loss.
Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTPL is recognised separately as interest income.

Equity instruments

Equity instrument Is a contract that evidences the residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all its liabilities, The Company subsequently measures all equity investments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, under the scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTPL are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

The Company has elected to measure investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures at cost as
per Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements, accordingly, the measurement at fair value through the
statement of profit and loss and related disclosures under Ind AS 108 do not apply.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-locking basis the expected credit losses (ECLs) associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI, loans and advances, deposits, trade and aother
receivables and on exposure arising from loan commitments. The Company recognizes a loss allowance for
such Iosses at each raparting date.

The measurament of ECL reflects:

« An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

+ The time value of money,

« Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The method and significant judgments used while computing the expected credit losses and information
about the exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default have been set out in note 35,

Write-off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery
effarts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

For retail clients, the Company writes off financial assets prudently, basis the duration of delinquency.

Deracognition of financial asseils
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under an arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Yhen it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. |n that
case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability, the transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on the basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. This classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held for trading and other financial
liabilities designated as such at initial recognition.

Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in
other comprehensive iIncame (the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amaunt that is not attributable to
changes In market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially in the statement of profit and loss
(the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability).

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabiliies are derecognised when they are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Reclassification of financial instrument

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing thase
assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the
change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent.

After initial recognition, equity instruments and financial liabilities are not reclassified.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheetif there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

m. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments and derivatives at fair values at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the maost advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best usa.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements) are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurament as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market pricas in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
s directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant ta the fair value measurement
is unobservable

Far assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for disposal in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabllities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

n. Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, short-term deposits and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible in cash and
subject to insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrawings (other than debt
securities) in the balance sheet.

0. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rale method. Borrowing costs
net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset
till such time the asset |s ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, All other borrowing costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

p. Foreign exchange transactions and translations

Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting
currency and a foreign currency on the transaction date.
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Conversion

Transactions in forgign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognized In the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement
of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reportad as part of the fair value gain or less. Thus, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on norn-monetary
assets such as equity Investmenis classified as FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currency are not retransiated at reporting
date.

q. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirament benefits in the form of Pravident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions
are charged to the stalement of profit and loss of the year when the contribution to the fund is due. There
are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is 2 defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried
out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method made at the end of the financial year.
The Company makes contribution to a scheme administered by an Insurance Company approved by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) to discharge the gratuity liability to the
employees. The Company records its gratuity liability based on an actuarial valuation made by an
independent actuary as at the year end. Provisions made for the funded amount are expensed in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income [n the period in which they occur.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in tha balance sheet
Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

Long term compensated absences

The Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of
valuations as at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit
Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions and are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the
provision for compensated absences under provisions in the balance sheet.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
computed in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses and unabsorbed brought forward
depreciation,

Current tax

The current income tax charge Is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the tax autherities,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultanecusly.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the
Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilittes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
dand liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax lisbilities and assets
reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assels and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and it is intended to realise the aseet and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
Deferred lax relating to items recognised outside the stalement of profit and loss s recognised ouiside the
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss
and included in deferred tax assets. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes
down the carrying amount of MAT entittement to the extent there s no langer convincing evidence to the
effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets / incurring of expenses
Expenses and assets are recognized net of goods and services tax paid, except:

(1) When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as a part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or s a parl of the expense item, as applicable;

(i) When receivables and payables are stated with the amaount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as a part of other
non-financial assets and other non-financial lizbilities in the balance sheat,

s. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,

A contingent liability i1s a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannct be measured reliably, The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

t. Earnings pershare
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profil or loss for the peried attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumplions thal affect the reported amounis of revenues, expenses, assels, liabiliies, the
accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of coniingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result In cutcomes that require a material adjusiment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based cn historical experience and various cther factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year
in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, estimates and assumptions, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

* Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measuremeant date. When the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannol be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation technigues. The inputs for these valuations
are taken from observable sources where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values, Judgments include considerations of various inputs including liquidity
risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes in assumptions/ judgments about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. For further details about determination of fair value refer note 39.

« Impairment of financial assets using the expected credit loss method

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default, expscted
loss rates and loss given defaults. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's histary, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ mods|
for impairment based on changes in credit guality since initial recegnition as summarised below:

= Stage 1 (1-30 days DPD) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date.

* Stage 2 (31-60 days DPD) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but that do not have objective evidence of impairment.

« Stage 3 (more than 90 days DPD) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 1s measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at Lifetime ECL
for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets,

ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as
follows:

Probability of Default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the next 12
months (12-month PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD)
LGD represents the Company’'s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by
type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. Forward-locking
economic information (including management overlay) Is included In determining the 12-month and lifetime
FD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitared and reviewed on an
ongoing basis. In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109
— Financial Instruments, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of trade receivables. Far further details about assumptions
used in calculating the expected credit losses and the sensitivity of assumptions refer note 35.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

* Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely for payment of
principal and interest (SPPI) test and the business model test The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgment used by the Company in determining the business model
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Company monitors financial assets
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

= [ncome taxes

Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax,
determining the provisien for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain
tax positions. For further details refer note 30.

* Provisions and contingencles

Provisions and contingencies are recognized when they become probable and when there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the outfiow of resources can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the provision and liability requires the application
of judgment fo the existing facts and circumstances, which are subject to change.

Assumptions and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the fulure and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumpticns and
estimates on parameters available when financial siatements are prepared, Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they oocour,

» Retirement and other employee benefits

The cost of the gratuity and long-term employee benefits and the present value of its obligations are
determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These Include the determination of the future salary increases,
attrition rate, mortality rates and discount rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, the obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The attriien rate represents the
Company's expected experience of employee turnover. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Discount rate |s based upcn the market yields available on Government bonds at the reporting date with a
term that matches with that of the liabilities.

Further details about gratuity and long-term employee benefits obligations are provided in note 32.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

s Share based payments

The Company has formulated a CML Employee Incentive Plan. The fair value of the options granted under
the Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in other equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity. For a detalled disclosure refer note 34,

* Effective interest rate

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
(i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or o the amortised cost of a financial liability. This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgment regarding the expected behavior and life cycle of the
instruments and other fee incomea/ expense that are intagral parts of the instrument.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020,
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Note As at As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 | 01st April, 2018
¥ in lakh % in lakh # in lakh
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 1,844.03 4,589.12 505.79
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 3 2,249.77 1,033.31 107.28
Receivables 4
(I} Trade receivables 14.97 4.46 -
(Ily Other receivables - o =
Loans 5 44,318.58 21,644.54 11,657.30
Other financial assets 6 660.64 737 32.18
TOTAL 49,088.98 27,345.14 12,302.55
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) Fi 108.68 1.18 1.18
Property, plant and equipment BA 147.27 77.11 23.38
Right of Use - Premises 8B 19.89 53.28 91.75
Goadwill 8C 2,501.35 1,578.60 1,578.60
Other Intangible assets 8D 11.76 - -
Other non-financial assets 2] 64.77 102.35 73.12
TOTAL 2,863.72 1,812.52 1,768.03
TOTAL ASSETS 51,942.70 29,157.66 14,070.58
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
() Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 10 103.03 99,25 115.43
(I)Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . . -
Debt securities 11 13,001.22 6,905.65 603.99
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12 29,719.77 17,247.77 9,988.90
Subordinated liabilities 13 1,005.38 - -
Other financial liabilities 14 420.55 56.19 97.56
TOTAL 44,339.95 24,308.86 10,805.88
MNon-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 15 - 51.25 -
Provisions 16 33 20.16 2.13
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 30.2 140.83 48.38 26.73
Other non-financial liabilities 17 97.99 55.49 29.086
TOTAL 272.53 176.28 64.92
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18 7,052.83 4,952.83 3,463.31
Other equity 19 277.39 (279.31) (263.53)
TOTAL 7,330.22 4,673.52 3,199.78
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 51,942.70 29,157.66 14,070.58

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

Mumbai
11th May, 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Centrum Micyocredit Limited
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048

! Note FY2020 FY2019
Particulars N
g Zin lakh % in lakh
Revenue from operations
Interest income 20 8,149.92 4,053.48
Fees and commission income 21 44.80 71:31
Net gain on fair value changes 22 86.70 19.38
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost
category 23 305.00 -
Other operating revenue 24 2.49 8.94
Total revenue from operations 8,588.91 4,093.11
Other income 25 228.49 33.32
Total income 8,817.40 4,126.43
Expenses
Finance costs 26 4.800.96 2,213.19
Impairment on financial instruments 27 149.12 91.55
Employee benefits expenses 28 2,143.94 1,180.26
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 8 115.40 76.39
Other expenses 29 974.14 519.98
Total expenses 8,183.56 4,081.37
Profit/(loss) before tax 633.84 45.06
Tax expense:
- Current tax 30 - 60.77
- Deferred tax 30 94.15 21.19
Total tax expense 94.15 81.96
Net Profit/ (loss) for the year 539.69 (36.90
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 19 (0.31) 1.65
- Income tax relating to these items 19 0.08 (0.46)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . -
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (0.23) 1.19
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 539.48 (35.71)
Earnings per equity share 31
Face value of 210 per share
- Basic (%) 0.92 (0.09)
- Diluted (%) 0.92 (0.09)
1

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Centrum Microcredit Limited

A

el

Prashant Thakker
Executive Director & CEQO
DIN 07405451

RS

Sumant Sakhardande /i Ranjan'Ghosh
Partner < \o| Chairman
Ms 034828 | = \ .. DIN 07592235
—1 Voo S
\\I { .\.-\--\-‘ i -/, d
Mumbai T—e
C ( 11th May, 2020
A
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ChiefFinancial Officer

Mumbai
11th May, 2020

L

Bhumika Jani
Company Secretary

Mumbai
11th May, 2020
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

iy FY2020 FY2019
% in lakh ¥ in lakh

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 633.84 45.06
Adjusiments for

Depreciation and amortisation 115.40 76,39
Gain on direct assignment * (356.56) =)
Impairment on financial instruments 149.12 87.58
Bad dabts written-off - 3.97
Share based payments to employees 6.73 =
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit & loss (86.70) (19.38)
Stamp duty expenses incurred on increase in authorised share capital 28.50 19.00
Operating profit before working capital changes 490.33 212.62
Changes in working capital :

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 2.87 (16.17)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial fiabilities 400.83 1.16
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 13.24 1267
Increase/{decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 42.50 26.43
(Increase)/decrease in fixed deposits{net) (1,217.73) (926.38)
{Increase)/decrease in loans(net) (13,655.70) (10,075.89)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (10.51) (4.48)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (599.98) (41.65)
(Increase)/decrease In other non-financial assets 37.59 (29.24)
Cash used in operating activities before tax (14,496.55) (10,840.91)
|Income taxes paid (net) (158.75) (9.52)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) (14,665.30) (10,850.43)
Cash flows from investing activities

Income from sale of investments 86.70 18.38
Purchase consideration paid on business combination (1,877.18) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats (125.63) (88.01)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B) {1,916.11) (68.63)
Cash flows from financing activities

Froceeds from issuance of equity share capital 750.00 1,489.52
Stamp duty expenses incurred on increase in authorised share capital (28.50) {19.00)
Payment of lease liabilities (53.25) (46.00)
:?:g;::;gs from borrowings{other than debt securities), debt securities and subordinated 43.612.84 26,185.26
lfi‘\;ebr;laiag:;enl of borrowings(other than debt securities), debt securities and subordinated (31,735.98) (22,604.81)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities {C) 12,545.11 15,004.97
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A +B + C) (4,026.30) 4,085.91
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,591.69 505.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note i) 565.39 4,591.69
Notes:

{1} Components of cash and cash equivalents (Zin lakh)
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Cash and bank balances (refer note 2) 1,844.03 458912
Add : Impairment loss allowance (refer note 2) - 257
Less - Bank overdraft {refer note 12) (1,278 64) -
Total 565.39 4,691.69
() Non-cash Investing activity (% in lakh)
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Impact of fair valuation on net assets acquired through business combination 6.44 -
Acauisition of right of use assets (refer note 8) 17.22 364
Total 23.66 3.64
(1) Net cash provided by | {used in} operating activities includes: (¥ in lakh)
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Interest received 7,685.71 3.898.51
Interest paid (4,527.15) (2,167.81)

* The gain on direct assignment is gross of expenses incurred in relation to the direct assignment transaction of ¥ 37.31 lakh and

includes interest accrual classified under "Interest income on portfolio loans” of ¥ 14,25 lakh.

The above Statement of Cashflows has been prepared under the indirect method as set outin Ind AS 7 Statement of Cashflows.

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (Mote 1)

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W/W 100048
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Chairman
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
[Fermerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019 | 01st April, 2018
2 in lakh 2 in lakh ¥ in lakh
Cash on hand 14.45 a.qz 715
Balances with banks:
- In curent accounts 1,829.58 3,087.34 498.64
- In deposit accounts{including interest accrued thereon) having original maturity less than three montis - 1.500.63 -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - _(2.57)
TOTAL |,HM.0_3 lﬂT! 505,79
with ial institutions eam interest at fixed rates. As on 31 March 2019, short term deposits were made for varying periods ranging from one day to three months,
i ing on the late cash redqui of the Company and earned interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018 | 01st April, 2018
% in lakh 2 in lakh % in lakh
Depaosits with banks/ financial institutions having original maturity more than three menths (incheding interest 1.856.44 703,34 101.00
accrued thereon)
Balances with banks/ financial institutions to the extent held as credit enhancement for loans or security against the 352.95 130,31 628
borrowings 2 g 5
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1.62) {0.34} 5
TOTAL 2,248.77 1,033.31 107.28
Depaosits with banks/fnancial institutions eam interest at fixed rates.
The nature of balances in deposit accounts is as follows:
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 01st April, 2018
7 in lakh 2 in lakh € in lakh
Credit enhancements for loans 256.30 285.03 =
Security against the borrowings 1,995.08 748.62 107.28
Reconciliation of i irment loss allowance Tin lakh
Expected .. | Carrying amount net
As at 31t March, 2020 posure atdefault| probabili Sxpeeied credit. | ™t impairment
default =it provision
Cash and cash equivalents
- In deposit accounts(including interest accrued thereon) having original maturity less than three months = e & =
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above =
Deposits with banks/ financial institutions having original maturity mere than three months {including inlerest 1,808.44 0.07% - 0.91% 138 1.897.06
accrued thereon) G 2 & ¢
Balances with banks/financial institutions to the extent held as credit enhancement for loans or security against the 352.95 0.03% - 0.51% 024 35271
borrewings 2 : g § 5
¥ in lakh
Expected . |Carrying amount net
i ected credit
As at 315t March, 2019 atdefault| p of | BP T of impairment
dafault provision
Cash and cash equivalents
- In deposit accounts(inciuding interest accrued thereon) having original maturity less than three months 150063 | 0.03% -0.38% 257 1,498.06
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above
Depasits with banks/ financial institutions having original maturity mere than three menths (inchuding interest 70334 | 0.03% - 0.07% 027 703.07
accrued thereon)
Bal with banks/fi ial institutions to the extent held as credit enhancement for loans or security against the 33031 0.03% - 0.07% 0.08 330.25
baol ings
¥ in lakh
Expected .. | Carrying amount net
ected it
As at 01st April, 2018 P at default| p Bxp i e':md' of impairment
default provision
Cash and cash equivalents
- In deposit accountsfincluding interest accrued thereon) having original maturity less than three months i z : =
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above
Deposits with banks/ financial institutions having eriginal maturity more than three months (including interest =
acorued thereon) 101.00 - 101.00
Bal: with b al institutions to the extent held as credit enhancement for loans or security against the .
borowings 6.28 628
Trade and other receivables
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 |  01st April, 2018
¥ in lakh T in lakh % in lakh
Trade and other i it idered good, within India)
(I} Trade receivables 1497 4.48 =
(Il Cther receivables = = =
TOTAL 14.97 4.46 -

Mo frade receivables are due from directors, other officers ar from private company or firm in which any drector is @ pariner, director or member. Trade re
fid 2 L et

d a

bearing and are generally on terms of 90 days. For trade and other with na

cejvables are non-interest
as per Ind AS has been

P
followed. Also, since there is no default history of such items in the past, therefore, for any items of trade and other receivables, where the amount is dpd=90 days, the same has

been fully provided for in the books of accounts.

Trade receivables days past due
The amount autstanding as on 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 have days past due for less than 20 days.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Other non-financial assets
: Asat As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 01st April, 2018
Zin lakh % in lakh ¥ in lakh
Balances with governmeant autharities 37.00 47,38 2082
Prepaid expenses 27.77 54.02 50.76
Other advances - 0.95 1.44
TOTAL 64,77 102.35 73.12
Payables
: As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 01st April, 2018
Z in lakh ¥ in lakh Z in lakh
cured, considered good, within India

() Trade Payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micro and small enterpri: = - -
(il) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 103.03 29,25 115.43
(IOther Payables - -

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - & -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -

TOTAL 103.03 99.25 115.43

Out of the total dues, #1,58 lakh as on 31st March, 2020, #0.65 lakh as on 31st March, 2019 and ¥73.30 lakh as on 01st April, 2018 and pertains to related parties.
Debt securities

As at As at As at
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 01st April, 2018
Particulars
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
¥ in lakh % in lakh T in lakh

Debentures and bonds, considered good, within India

Secured

Non-convertible debentures (Series 1) 6,237 .31 4,978.73 -

Non-convertible debentures (Series II) 3,893.38 - -

Intarest accrued but not due on non-convertible debentures 1680.53 26.37 -

Unsecured

Compulseorily convertible debentures 2,800.00 1,900.00 600.00

Interest accrued but not dug on compulserily convertible debentures - 0.55 3.89
I TOTAL 13,091.22 6,905.65 603.99

Terms of repayment

N tible debentures (Series 1) (% in lakh)

.| As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, As at 01st April,
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment details 2020 2019 2018
13-24 months 12% Quarterly 402.00 5,107.00 =
upto 12 months 12% Quarterly 5,911.00 = £
5,313.00 5,107,00 =
Less: Effective interest rate adjustment {75.68) (128.27) =
TOTAL 6,237.31 4,978.73 -
Add: Interest accrued but not due on nen-convertible debentures 58.01 28.37 =
6,296.32 5,005.10 i

Mature of security

The facility is secured on a first and exclusive charge basis by way of hypothecation over the portfolio loans in such a way that the security cover is met, Further, the Company has provided additional security by way of cash

collateral and corporate guarantee in certain cases.

Non-convertible debentures (Series Il) (% in lakh)

h, at 01st April,

Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment details As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, As st Apri

2020 2019 2018

12-24 months 12%-13% Quarterly 3,970.00 - -
3,870.00 - -

Less: Effective Interest rate adjustment {76.62) = =
TOTAL 3,893.38 - -

Add: Interest accrued but not due on nen-convertible debentures 101.52 = -
3.224,90 - &

Nature of security

The facility is secured on a first and exclusive charge basis by way of hypothecation over the portfolio loans in such a way that the security cover is met. Further, the Company has provided addifional security by way of cash

collateral and corporate guaraniee in certain cases.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
{Formerly knewn as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statemeants for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Compulsorily convertible debentures- Series- (¥ in lakh)
Tenure {from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment detals| A% “":‘::‘n“m“' As ‘“3;:1‘9"""’"' As at 15t April, 2018
49-60 manths 15% Refer Nate belaw 600,00
37-48 months 15% Refer Maote balow 600.00
EZS—SE manths 15% Refer Note belaw 300.00
300.00 600.00 600,00
Less Effective interest rate adjustment - - -
TOTAL 300,00 800,00 600.00
Add. Intesest accrued but nat due on sampulsorily convertible debenfures. = = 3.99
30,00 E00.00 £0301
Com| rily convertible debentures- Serles-l {# In lakh}
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment detalls Asat 32“;:“"&“’" Asat 3;;:'““":." As at 1st April, 2018
45-50 months. 16% Refer Note below - B800.00 -
=: 800.00 -
Less: Effective interest rate adjustment = = =
TOTAL - B00.00 -
Add Interest acerued but nat due on compulserly convertible debentures = -
= EDD.00 =
Compulsorily convertible debentures- 5 (T in lakh}

1
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment detalls| 2t ?‘zrz'n"""‘"' Azat ?‘“’1‘9””"" As at 15t April, 2018
458-50 months 15% Refer Note below 500,00 -
37-48 months 15% Refer Mote below 1,500.00
1.500,00 500,00 =
Less; Effective inferest rate adjustment - & =
TOTAL 1,500.00 500.00 :
Ad Interest accrusd Bt nat dus on compulsorly convertible debentures = 055 -
1,500.00 500.55 =
Compulsorily convertible debentures- Serles-\ {¥ In lakh}

As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,

Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of interest | Repayment details As at 15t April, 2018

2020
48-60 months 15% Refer Note below 500.00 - -
500.00 - -
Less: Effectve interest rate adjustment - - -
TOTAL 500,00 - -
[ Add: Interest acerued but nat due i - - -
500,00 = =
Compulsorily convertible debentures- Series-y (% in lakh}
As at 31st March, | As at 31st Marel
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment details| = 0 T4 DAt | s at st Aprll 2018
61-110 months. 15% Fefer Note below 500.00 - -
500.00 - -
Less: Effective inferest rate adjustment ] - -
TOTAL 500,00 - -
Add: Interest accrued but nat due on compulsorly converible debentures - - -
500.00 = ~
Canversian event {far afl series of I above) s
The earlier of
(&) Expiry of the tenor of th bl . OF

() At the optien of the halder of the compulsarily canvertible debentures by issuing a notice of 7 (seven) warking days to the Company,




Centrum Microcredit Limited

(Fermerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
12 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

As at As at As at
|Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 |  01st April, 2018
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
% in lakh % in lakh Z in lakh

Secured, within India
Term loans from financial institutions 21,648.69 11,697.85 9.912.48
Term loans from banks 5,879.31 268377 -
Securitisation liability 768.38 2,828.53 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 144.75 are2 76,42
Bank overdraft 1,276.64 - -

TOTAL 29.719.77 17.247.77 9,988.90
Borrowings(other than debt securities)
Terms of repayment of term loans from banks & fi ial institutions (% in lakh)
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment details As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, As at 01st April,

2020 2018 2018

25-36 months 13%-14% Quartarly 250.00 - &
13-24 months 10%-11% Menthly 62.50 - -
13-24 months 12%-13% Menthly - 1.294.95 4,916.67
13-24 months 13%-14% Monthly 3,32083 478.61 =
13-24 months 14%-15% Monthly 3,674,85 3,443.08 -
13-24 months 13%-14% Quarterly 410.26 - -
upto 12 menths 10%-11% Monthly 250,00 - -
upto 12 months 12%-13% Manthly 1,407.45 2,905.05 5,083,323
upto 12 months 13%-14% Menthly 5519.68 1,852.65 =
upte 12 months 14%-15% Manthly 11,850.72 4,437 .45 -
upte 12 months 15%-16% Manthly 262.50 - =
uptoe 12 months 13%-14% Quarterly 641.02 - -
upto 12 months 14%-15% Quarterly 250.00 - -

TOTAL 27,699.81 14,511.76 10,000.00
Less: Effective interest rate adjustment (188.17) (130.14) (87.52)
Add: Fair market value adjustment on acquisition 4,95 - -
Add: Payable on account of fees to the lander 11.42 4 -

TOTAL 27,528.00 14,381.62 9,912.48
Add: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 144.75 37.62 76.42

27,672.75 14,419.24 9,988.90

Nature of security

The facility is secured on a first and exclusive charge basis by way of hypothecation over the portfolio loans in such a way that the security cover is met. Further, the Company has provided additional security by way of cash

collateral and corporate guarantee in certain cases.
Bank Overdraft is secured against fixed deposits maintained with the same Bank.

Securitisation liability

Terms of repayment (% in lakh)
.| As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, As at 01st April,
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest | Repayment details 2020 2019 2018
13-24 manths 9.60%-11.44% Monthly 14.85 391.48 -
upta 12 menths 9.60%-11.44% Monthly 753.43 2,437.05 -
TOTAL 768,38 2,828.53 -

Nature of security

Securitisation liability represents the net outstanding value (net of investment in pass-through certificates) of the sale procesds received by the Company from securitisation trust in respect of loan assets transferred by the

Company pursuant to the deed of assignment. The quantum of Credit Er

t (CE) is

form of cash collateral / fixed deposit placed with banks and / or Second Loss Credit Enhancement (SLCE) in the form of guarantee provided by third party as the case mayhbe,

13 Subordinated Liabilities

ined based on the pool rating requirement. The security is offered by way of First Loss Credit Enhancement (FLCE) in the

As at As at As at
" 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 01st April, 2018
Particulars
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
% in lakh % in lakh % in lakh
Unsecured, within India
Subardinated liability from a financial institution 1,000.00 - -
Interest accrued but not due on suberdinated liability 5.38 = =
TOTAL 1.005.38 - =
Tarms of repayment (% in lakh)
| Asat 31st March, | As at 31st March, As at 01st April,
Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest |Repayment details 2020 2019 2018 P
61-110 months 17%| Bullet 1.000.00 - -
1,000.00 - -
Less: Effective interest rate adjustment a i 3
TOTAL 1,000.00 - -
Add: Interest accrued but not due on subordinaled liability 5.38 - =
1,005.38 - o

Terms of repayment
Repayment will be made in 2 bullet repayments:
1)50% will be repaid at the end of 5 years and & months from the date of disbursement.

2)Remaining 50% will be repaid at the end of the 6th year from the date of disbursement
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

18 Other equity

(% in lakh)
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Statutory Capital L : Emplcwe‘s _St“k Impairment reserve Other °§I r:zrr::ensive Total
reserve contribution <2 "

Balance as at 01st April, 2018 - - (263.53) - - - (263.53)
Prafit/(loss) for the year - - (36.90) - - - (36.80)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of
tax) . - - : A 1.19 119
Transferred to / from 14.54 19.93 {14.54) - = L) 19.83
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 14.54 19.83 (314.97) - - 1.19 (279.31)
Balance as at 01st April, 2019 14.54 19.93 (314.97) - - 119 (279.31)
Profit/{loss) for the year - - 539.69 - - - 539.69
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of
tax) & = = o = (0.23) (0.23)
| Transfarred to / from 107.94 10.51 (196.95) 6.73 8§9.01 - 17.24
rBalance as at 31st March, 2020 122.48 30.44 2777 6.73 8§9.01 0.96 277.39

Nature of reserves

a) Statutory Reserve
The Company transfers a of sum of not less than twenty per cent of net profit of that year as disclosed in the statement of profil and loss to its Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the REI Act,
1934,
The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to statutory reserves as specified in Section 45-IC(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:
{1} Every non-banking financial Company (NBFC) shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account
and before any dividend is declared.
(2} No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as may be specified by the RBI from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported
1o the REI within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal. Frovided that the RBI may, in any particular case and for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of twenty-cne days by such
further peried as it thinks fit or condone any delay in making such report.

b) Capital Contribution
The holding Gompany has issued some :orpura!e guarantees to lenders on behalf of the Company. These guarantees are fair valued and the notonal cost thereof has been adjusted with the bomrowings
with the f g impact gnised as capital ¢ ibution.

¢) Retained Eamings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till dale, less any transfers to statutory reserve and impairment reserve.

d) Employees’ stock options outstanding
The Company has issued some employees stock options, the impact of fair valuation of the same is accounted through other equity,

) Impairment reserve
In line with the RBI Circular No. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.108/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13th March, 2020, ihe Company has created prowsmn for impai t on financial ir and
the excess of the provision prescribed under IRACP norms over and above the ECL as per the Ind AS 109 norms has been transf dto Reserve through an appropration from
the net profit or loss for the year. This appropriation has been refl in the of in equity under retained earnings. Fuﬂher the wllhdrawal from this reserve can be done only with prior
permission of RBI.

f) Other comprehensive income
The impact due to remeasurement of post-employee benefit obligations has been i in the other compret income net of deferred tax thereon.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

20 Interest income

FY2020 FY2019
Particulars Amortised Cost | Amortised Cost
(Z in lakh) (% in lakh)
Interest income on loan portfalio 7,965,66 4,042.24
Interest on fixed deposits 111.42 0.96
Other interest income 72.84 10.28
TOTAL 8,149.92 4,053.48
21 Fees and commission income
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
& in lakh £ in lakh
Commission income 44,80 11.31
TOTAL 44.80 11.31
Revenue from contracts with customers
Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to statement of profit and loss
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
% in lakh Z in lakh
Commission income on sale of Insurance 33.46 11.31
Commission received as a business correspondent” 11.34 -
Total revenue from contract with customers 44 80 11.31
Geographical markets
India 44.80 11.31
Qutside India - -
Total revenue from contract with customers 44,80 11.31
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 44,80 14,81
Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 44.80 11.31
Contract balances
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 01st April,
March, 2020 March, 2019 2018
Z in lakh Zin lakh Z in lakh
Other financial liabilities** 27.31 - -
Trade receivables 14.97 4.46 -

* This represents the commission received by the Company on loan assets serviced as a business correspondent.
** This represents the loans held as a business correspondent of ¥ 220.61 lakh which has been netted off against the business correspondent loan

liability of ¥ 247.93 lakh.

22 Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars FY2020 FY2019
¥in lakh Tin lakh
Net gain /(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit & loss
account (within India, realised)
Mutual fund units 86.70 19.38
Total (A) 86.70 19.38
Fair Value changes:
Realised 86.70 19.38
Unrealised . &
Total (B) 86.70 19.38
TOTAL 86.70 19.38
‘x\kT: C\\' ‘-
47
-~
o
W
x
*
(3]

/




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

23 Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Z in lakh #in lakh
Gain on direct assignment 305.00 -
TOTAL 305.00 -
24 Other operating revenue
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Z in lakh Zin lakh
Recovery of loans written back 212 8.94
Service fee on direct assignment 0.37 -
TOTAL 2.49 8.94
25 Other income
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Z in lakh #in lakh
Marketing income 228,49 33.32
TOTAL 228.49 33.32
Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers
Type of services or service E¥2030 Y2015,
% in lakh % in lakh
Marketing income 228.49 33.32
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Geographical markets
India 228.49 33.32
Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 228.49 33.32
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 228.49 33.32
Services transfarred over a period of time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 228.49 33.32

Note:

The Company satisfies its performance obligations on completion of service with regards to the marketing income.
The payments on these contracts is due on completion of service, the contracts do not contain a significant financing

component and the consideration is not variable.

Revenue from contracts with customers

During the year, the Company has earned marketing revenue from contracts with customers for ¥ 228.49 lakh
(previous year - # 33,32 Lakh). Marketing revenue is recognised at a given point in time.
No contract assets or contract liabilities are recognised at any of the reporting dates. Further, revenue from contracts

with customers are as per contract price.

Further, at the end of the reporting period, there are no unsatisfied performance obligations with respect to the existing

contracts.
Contract balances
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 01st April,
March, 2020 March, 2019 2018

Z in lakh Zin lakh Z in lakh
Other financial assets 135.34 21.35 -
Finance costs
Particulars FY2020 FY2019

% in lakh Z in lakh
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest on debt securities 1,430.91 188.64
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,992.52 1,925.44
Interest on subordinate liabilities 85.66 r
Interest on securitised liabilities 254.15 30.51
Interest on lease liabilities 4.65 7.34
Other borrowing costs 33.07 61.26

TOTAL 4,800.96

2,213.19
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

29 Other expenses

Particulars FY2020 FY2019

¥ in lakh ¥ in lakh
Rent, taxes and energy costs* 1768.91 126.86
Stamp duty fees 38,21 2229
Repairs and maintenance 16.13 6.51
Communication costs 30.66 13.98
Printing and stationery 49.91 34.54
Directors' fees, allowances and expenses 15.81 7.60
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note 29.1 below) B 14,53 11.19
Legal and professional charges 302.51 132.52
Insurance 10.27 4.92
Software licenses expenses 79.28 64.34
Travelling and conveyance expenses 64.22 35.47
Cash handling charges 134.83 42.03
Membership and subscription 8.76 7.26
Other expenditure 29.1 10.48
TOTAL 974.14 519,98

* & total amount of 253.25 lakh being rent for FY2020 and #46.00 lakh being rent for FY2019 have been adjusted with
the lzase liability created as per the reguirements of Ind AS 116 — Leases. Hence the reported amounts are net of the
same.

29.1 Auditor's fees and expenses

FY2020 FY2018

ratietars Zin lakh Zin lakh
As Auditor:
Audit fees 11.34 10.50
Out of pocket expenses 0.59 0.69
In any other manner:
Certification services 2,80 7

TOTAL 14.53 11,19

30 Income Tax
The components of lncome tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2020 & 31st March, 2019

FY2020 FY2019
Faricuisrs Zin lakh Tin lakh
Current tax - 80.77
Defarred tax relating to origination and reversal of temperary differences 94.15 21.19
Total tax charge 94.15 81.96
Current tax - 60,77
Deferred tax 94.15 21.19

30.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge
The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at India corporate tax rate.
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st
March, 2019 is, as follows:

Particulars FY2020 FY2019

% in lakh Zin lakh
Accounting profit before tax 633,84 45.08
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% 27.82%
Tax at the applicable rate 159.52 12.53
Disallowances on account of Permanent Differences 11.50 529
Utilisation of brought forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciation on (109.60) i
'which deferred lax assetl was not created in earlier years '
Defarred tax assets not created on brought forward business losses and . 98.53
unabsorbed depreciation 0
Defarred tax assets created on earlier year's brought forward business losses and (16.00) .
unabsorbed depreciation '
(Benefit)/ Expense due to change in tax rates on the opening timing differences (10.41) 0.86
Other items (1.85) (35.26)
Deferred tax impact excluding MAT credit entitlement 33.37 81.96
Write off of MAT credit of previous year 60.77 -
Total charge to the statement of profit and loss 94,15 81.96

During the year, the Company has exercised the option permitted under section 113BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as infroduced by the Taxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, Accordingly, the Company had recognised and remeasured Provision for ncome Tax and Deferred Tax based on the rate
prescribed in the said section, Accordingly, this has resulted in a reduction of deferred tax liability of #10.40 lakh and a charge on account of reversal of MAT
credit entitliement of ¥ 60.77 lakh of previous year for the year ended 31st March, 2020,




30.2

Centrum Microcredit Limited
{Farmerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

The following tables show deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

= Z in lakh
o Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax Income Other
Assetsasat |Liabilities asat| Statement | COMPrehensive
income
31st March, 31st March,
2020 2020 FY2020 FY2020
:r;lug;;y, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and goodwill - carrying - 22205 76.81 -
EIR impact on loans measured at amortised cost 94.59 - (43.18) -
EIS Asset recognised under ind AS - 57.35 57.35
EIR impact on borrowings (including debt securities and subordinated liabilities) " 86,02 478
measured at amortised cost : = =
Impairment loss allowance 93.02 - (32.49) =
Provision for employse benefits 8.48 - (2.80) (0.08)
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid 11.24 - (11.24) -
QOther temporary differences 1B.17 - (15.84) -
Total 225,50 366,33 33.38 (0.08))
Charge on account of reversal of MAT credit entittement - - 60.77 -
Net Impact 140.83 - 94.15 (0.08)
% in lakh
Rartichiars Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax Income tEr ¥
Assets as at | Liabilities as at Statement compranensive
income
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2019 FY2019 FY2019
Property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and goodwill - carrying 5 145.16 0455 .
amount
EIR impact on loans measured at amortised cost 51.41 - (40.77) E
EIR impact on borrowings (including debt securities and subordinated liabilities) } 81.24 & §8.70 .
measured at amortised cost ’ -
Impairment loss allowance 60.53 - (26.31) -
Provision for employes benefits 5.61 - {5.61) 0.45
Other temparary differences 0.70 - 1.86 -
Total 118.24 227.38 82.42 0.46
Net Impact 109,16 - 81.96 -
Less: MAT credit entitement {60.77) - (60.77) -
Balance 48,38 : 21,19 0,46

The difference in the net impact on account of deferred tax for both the years vis-a-vis the profit or loss account impact during the current financial year is on

account of defarred tax on fair valuation of gocdwill acquired through business combination. The same has been adjusted in the carrying amount of goodwill,

¥ in lakh
Deferred tax | Deferred tax
Particulars assets as at | liabilities as at
01st April, 2018| 01st April, 2018
Property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and goodwill - carrying
amount = 51.60
EIR impact on loans measured at amortised cost 10.83 -
EIR impact on borrowings (including debt securities and subordinated liabilities)
measured at amortised cost - 2254
Impairment loss allowance 34.22 -
Provision for employee benefits - -
Other temporary differences 2.56 -
Total 47.41 74,14
Net deferred tax liability 26,73
Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity % in lakh
|Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 01st April,
March, 2020 March, 2019 2018
/Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity - - -
Tax losses and tax credits % in lakh
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 01st April,
March, 2020 [March, 2018 2018
Unused business losses and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax - 499.03 280.15
asset has been recognised
MAT credit entitlement (BO.77) 60.77 -




Centrum Microcredit Limited
{Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

31 Earnings per equity share
(Face value of ¥ 10 per share)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehalders by the weighted average number of
equity sharas outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential aquity shares.

Particulars FY2020 FY2019

Met profit after tax avallable for equity shareholders for basic EPS (% in lakh) 539.69 (36.90)
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for diluted EPS (¥ In lakh) 538.69 (36.90)
\Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) 584.60 399.88
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 584,60 399,88
Basic earnings per share (¥) 0.92 (0.09)
Diluted earnings per share (¥) 0.92 (0.09)

Effects of share options on diluted earnings per share
(Far the ysar anded 31st March, 2020)

Particulars Nos.

Met profit for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (% in lakh) 530.69

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year ended 31st|

March, 2020 {Nos.) 5,84,60,000

Average fair value of one option during the year ended 2020 (%) 4.45 & 4,84

Weighted average number of shares under Employee stock option during the year

ended 31st March, 2020 (Nos.) 191,356
10.00

Exercise price for shares under option during the year ended 31st March, 2020 (3)

Computation of Earnings per share

Earnings per
Earnings Shares

[Particciarn (in lakh) (Nos.) ’?;]"

Met profit for the year ended 31st March, 2020 538,69
|Weighted average number of shares outstanding during year ended 31st

March, 2020 5,84,60,000

Basic eamings per share 092
Impact of employee stock options 6.73

Mumber of shares under employee stock options 1,91,356

Diluted eamings per share 546.42 5,86,51,356 0.92
Note

1. Since the rate of conversion of the compulsorily convertible debentures can be ascertained only on the date of conversion, the same

have not been considered while calculating the diluted eamings per share,
2. Since the impact of considering the potential equity shares (i.e. employee stock options) is anti-dilufive, the same have been ignored.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

32 Employee benefit obli
a) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions and there is ro legal or constructive obligation to pay further
confributions. The Company has defined contribution plans namely provident fund and employess state insurance scheme. The contributions made by the

Company in respect of these plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans which are included
under contribution to provident and other funds:

Zin lakh
|Pani_cutm [ FY2020] FY2013/
[Provident fund | 115.05 | 59.67 |

b) Defined benefit plans
The Company has a funded defined benefit gratuity plan (previous year: unfunded). The Company's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for India
employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under
the Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depend on the member's length of
service and salary at retirement age. The fund is managed by an independent Insurance Company, The Insurance Company is responsible for the administration
of the plan assets and for defining the investment strategies.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit / expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

i) Balance sheet Z in lakh
Present value of | Fair value of plan
Farticilas obligation assets Nstiamount
As at 01st April, 2018 5.00 - 5.00
Current service cost 8.21 - 8.21
Interest expense/(income) 0.39 - 0.39
Return on plan assets - - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.09) - {0.09)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (1.96) - (1.56)
Employer contributions - - -
Benefit payments {0.69) - (0.69)
As at 31st March, 2019 11.26 - 11.26
Current service cost 11.11 11.26 (0.15)
Interest expense/{income) 0.88 - 0.88
Return on plan assets - 0.64 (0.64)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 0.71 # 0.71
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions (1.45) - (1.45)
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising on account of experience changes 1.69 - 1.69
Reversal of the liability = ™ -
Employer contributions 2 = T
As at 31st March, 2020 24.20 11.90 12,30
¥ in lakh
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, i
Particulars 2020 2019 As at 01st April, 2018
Present value of plan liabilities 24.20 11.26 5,00
Fair value of glan assels 11.90 = -
Plan Iiabi!itgr net of plan assets 12.30 11.26 5.00
Change in the fair value of plan assets : Z in lakh
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars 2020 2019

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -
Interest income = -

Contributions by the employer 11.26 -2
Benefits paid from the fund - -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 0.64 -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 11,90 -

ii) St of Profit and loss Z in lakh
Particulars FY2020 FY2019
Employee Benefit Expenses:

Current service cost 11.11 8.21
Total 11.11 8.21
Interest cost 0.88 0.39
Net impact on the profit before tax 11.98 8.60
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expenselincome (0.64) -
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1.45) -
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.71 (0.09)
Actuarial gainsi{losses) arising from changes in experience 1.69 (1.56)]

Net impact on the other comprehensive income before tax 0.31 (1.65
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iii) Defined benefit plans assets

¥ in lakh

Category of assets (% allocation)

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

As at 01st April, 2018

Insurer managed funds
- Government securities

- Insuranee funds 11.90 -

- Deposit and money market securities = = &

- Debentures / bonds - = =

- Equity shares - - -
Total 11.90 - -

iv) Actuarial assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post retirement benefits at their fair value on the balance
sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by referance to market conditions at the valuation date.

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

Particulars 2020 2019 As at 01st April, 2018
Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.56% p.a. N.A N.A
Rate of Discounting 6.56% p.a, 7.78% p.a, 7.73% p.a.
Salary escalation rate” 0.00% p.a. for the 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

next 2 years, 5.26%

p.a. for the next 1

year starting from the

3rd year, 5.00% p.a.

thereafter starting

from the 4th year
Rate of Employee Turnover 10.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assurad Lives |Indian Assured

Mortality (2006-08)  |Lives Martality (2006{Indian Assured Lives

Uit 08) Uit Mertality (2006-08) Uit

N.A N.A N.A

Mortality Rate After Employment

* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors

v) Demographic assumptions

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

As at 01st April, 2018

|Mortality in Service :

Indian Assured Lives
Martality(2006-08)

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality(2006

08)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality(2006-08)

vi) itivity

Year ended 31st March, 2019

Change in

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Decreasa

Increase

Discount rate

Delta Effect of +1%/-
1% Change in Rate
of Discounting

1.62

(1.34)

Rate of Employee Turnover

Delta Effect of +1%i/-
1% Change in Rate
of Employee
Turnover

(0.01)

(0.08)

Salary escalation rate

Delta Effect of +1%/-
1% Change in Rata
of Salary Increase

1.38

1.65

Year ended 31st March, 2020

Change in

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Decrease

Increase

Discount rate

Delta Effect of +1%/-
1% Change in Rate
of Discounting

2.53

(2.18)

Rate of Employee Turnover

Delta Effect of +1%/-
1% Change in Rate
of Employee
Turnover

(0.65)

Salary escalation rate

Delta Effect of +1%/-
1% Change in Rate
of Salary

(1.80)

2.56
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The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation fo significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied
as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

vii) Maturity (Analysis from the employer)

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows: Zin lakh
] As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars 2020 2019
1st Following Year 0.06 0.16
2nd Fallowing Year 0.06 0.19
3rd Following Year 0.16 0.19
4th Following Year 2.40 0.19
5th Following Year 3.22 1.01
Sum of years 6 to 10 13.90 5.30
Sum of years 11 and above 32.28 34.51

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 11 years (previous year - 15 years)

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to the following risks:

Interest rate risk:

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively
balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset liability matching risk:

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM
risk.

Mortality risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, the plan does not have any longevity risk.
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33 Related party disclosure

() Key managerial p !
Sr.N
& Name of the person Designation Date of Appointment
1 |Ranjan Ghosh Director 22nd March, 2017
2 |Rishad Byramjee Diractor 22nd March, 2017
3 |Shailendra Apte Director 06th December, 2016
4 |Suresh Krishna Kodihalli Independent Director 08th February, 2018
§ |layshree Venkatesan Independent Director 12th June, 2018
& |Prashant Thakker Whole Time Director & CEQ 01st June, 2019
7 |Praveen Saha Business Head 12th April, 2019
B [Hiren Vasa Chief Financial Officer 01st November, 2018
9 |Bhumika Jani Company Secretary 26th April, 2019
5 FY2020( FY2019
Key Managerial Personnel - Mr. Prashant Thakker % inlakh Zin lakh
a. Remuneration Paid 83.33 -
b. Share based payments(Number of options granted in lakh) 10.00 -
FY2020 FY2019
Key Managerial Personnel - Mr. Praveen Saha ZinTakh ¥ lakh
a. Remuneration Paid 55.00 -
b. Share based payments(Number of options granted in lakh) 3.00 -
z y FY2020 FY2019
Key Managerial Personnel - Mr. Hiren Vasa %inlakh in lakh
a. Remuneration Paid 18.00 16.50
b. Share based payments(Number of options granted in lakh) 0.75 -
(i) Other related parties
Nature of relationship Name of the party
Holding Company Centrum Capital Limited |
Fellow subsidiaries Centrum Retail Services Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited
Centrum Housing Finance Limited
Centrum Wealth Management Limited
Centrum Broking Limited
Centrum Insurance Brokers Limited
Enterprises where key managerial personnel of the Holding Company is involved BG Advisory LLP
Club7 Holidays Limited
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a) Transactions during the year

¥ in lakh

Particulars

FY2020

FY2018

Issue of equity shares
Centrum Capital Limited

Capital Contribution
Centrum Capital Limited

Property, plant and equipment purchased
Centrum Insurance Brokers Limited

Issue of compulsorily convertible debentures
Centrum Capital Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited

Conversion of compulsorily convertible debentures
Centrum Capital Limited

Issue on-convertible de S
Centrum Wealth Management Limited

Loans given
Centrum Retail Services Limited (Inter-corporate deposit)
Centrum Financial Services Limited (Inter-corporate deposit)

Consideration paid for acquisition of portfolio under Direct Assignment

CGentrum Financial Services Limited

Repa i against loans given
Centrum Retail Services Limited (Inter-corporate deposit)
Centrum Financial Services Limited (Inter-corporate deposit)

Loans taken

Centrum Retail Services Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited
Centrum Capital Limited

Centrum Housing Finance Limited

Loans repaid

Centrum Retail Services Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited
Centrum Capital Limited

Centrum Housing Finance Limited

750,00

10.51

750.00
1,500.00

1,350.00

400.00
800.00

1.767.41

800.00

1,489.52

19.83

1,300.00

5,107.00

10,500.00
2,800.00
10,500.00
1,000.00

10,500.00
2,800.00
10,500.00
1.000.00

Zin lakh

Particulars

FY2020

FY2019

Income

Interest Income

Centrum Financial Services Limited
Centrum Retail Services Limited

Interest expenses

Centrum Retail Services Limited

Centrum Financial Services Limited

BG Advisory LLP

Centrum Capital Limited

Centrum Capital Limited (CCD)

Centrum Housing Finance Limited

Centrum Wealth Management Limited

Processing fees

Centrum Wealth Management Limited (Arranger fees)

Centrum Financial Services Limited (Service Fee on Direct Assignment)
Centrum Retail Service Limited (Loan processing fees)

Centrum Capital Limited(amortisation of corporate guarantee fes)
Rent

Centrum Retail Services Limited

Centrum Financial Services Limited

Centrum Wealth Management Limited

Centrum Capital Limited

Travel fare

Club7 Holidays Limited

Arranger fees

Centrum Broking Limited

E A i on behalf of ti jated parti

Centrum Financial Services Limited (MCA expenses reimbursed)
Group Allocation expenses

Centrum Retail Services Limited

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on a Compan
Centrum Retail Services Limited

Centrum Capital Limited {Stamp duty)

6.13
13.68

59.84
45.00

148.84
3.74

11433
7.50

17.18
0.50
0.09
0.24
0.24
6.13

12.06
1.90

101.82

0.75

823.50
29.69
45.00
56.38

142.05
15.32

0.90

63.84
52.50
3.80

0.01
0.23
0.28
3.00
51.07

0.75
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All the income / expenses reported are exclusive of GST.

b) Balances at end of year

Zin lakh

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

Particulars 2020 2019 As at 01st April, 2018
Debt =

Centrum Waalth Management Limited (non convertible debentures) - 275.00 -
Centrum Capital Limited (compulsorily convertible debantures) 1,000.00 1,600.00 300.00
BG Advisory LLP (compulsorily convertible debentures) 300.00 300.00 300.00
Centrum Financial Services Limited (compulsorily convertible debenturas) 1,500.00 - -
Centrum Retail Services Limited (inter-corporate deposits) 400.00 - -
Other payables

Club7 Holidays Limited 0.19 0.66 -
Centrum Capital Limited 0.40 0.55 -
Centrum Retail Services Limited 0.58 - 50.06
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 0.40 0.81 -
Centrum Financial Services Limited - - 23.23
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34. Employee Stock Option Plan

EMPLOYEES INCENTIVE SCHEME (EIS)

The scheme has been approved by the shareholders of the Company at their General Meeting held on 22nd May, 2019, The Schema has been notified by the Board vide
Resolution dated 26th April, 2019. The same was notified by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee on 5th November, 2019. The eligibility to participate in the
Scheme is subject to such criteria as may be decided by the Company/Board/ Committee at its own discretion, including, but not imited to the date of joining of the Employee
with the Company/ Holding Company, grade of the Employee, performance evaluation, period of service with the Company/ Holding Company, criticality or any other criteria,
as the Committee determines. The Scheme shall be applicable to the Company and the Holding Company, if any, and Options may be granted to the Employees of the
Company and the Holding Company, if any, as determined by the Board/ Committee at their own discretion,

Presently, stock options have been granted under the following schemes:

i. CML Employee Incentive Scheme - Series |
il. CML Employee Incentive Scheme - Series |

a. The Company has provided foll g share based options to its employees:
[Particulars CML EIS - Sch 1 CMLEIS - Sch 1]
Date of the grant 08-11-2019 08-11-2019
Date of board meeting, where the EIS Plan was approved 26-04-2019 26-04-2019
Date of committee meeting where grant of options were approved 05-11-2019 05-11-2018
Dale of shareholders' approval 22-05-2019 22-05-2019

No. of options granted 13,00,000 2,50,000
Methed of settlement Equity Equity

The actual vesting of options | The actual vesting of options
will depend on continuation to |will depend on continuation to
hold the services being hold the services being
provided to the Company at | provided to the Company at the
the time of exercise of options |time of exercise of options and
and such other conditions as  |such other conditions as
mentioned in the Scheme. mentioned in the Scheme.

‘Vesting conditions

Vesting period (Years)
Exercise period (Years)

o

Details of Vesting and Exercise of Opti
Sch Vested opti No of opti exercised

CMLEIS - Scheme | S )
CMLEIS - Scheme |l = z

i. The detalls of EIS are s\ rised below:
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2020
CML EIS - Sct I CML EIS - Sch ]
Weighted
Particulars R
Weighted average exercise exercise price
No. of Options price (¥) No. of Options (%)
Cutstanding options at the beginning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year 13,00,000 10.00 2,50,000 10.00
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options - - - £
Qutstanding options at the end of the year 13,00,000 10.00 2,50,000 10.00
Exercizable at the end of the year - - - -
li’\l'&ighted average fair value of the options exercisable 13,00,000 4.45 250,000 4.94

ii. Weighted average exercise price of oplion during the year ended 31st March, 2020, ¥ 10.00 (31st March, 2019 Nil)

il The datall of exercise price for stock option at the end of the financial year 2019-20 is:

e " Weightadl n’vsrage Weighted
ones Range ol exerelas price f'or exercise % contractual life of H:r::;:geﬂu
options (in Years) P

CML - EIS: Series | #10.00 per option 13,00,000 ] ¥ 10.00
CML - EIS: Series || 210.00 per option 2,50,000 9 10.00

iv. The fair value of the opti granted is determined on the date of the grant using the “Black-Scholes option pricing model”-with the following assumptions, as
certified by an independent valuer:
Iﬁarticulars CML EIS - Scheme | CML EIS - Scheme Il |

Date of the Grant 08-11-2019 08-11-2019

Fair market value of option on the date of the Grant INR. 4.45 INR 4.94

Exercise price INR 10.00 INR 10.00

Expected volatility (%) 17.23% 20.67%

Expected option life (weighted average) 8 9

Expected dividends yield - -

Risk free interest rate (% 5.82% 6.75%

The Index value of CNX NIFTY for Finance sector as available on the stock exchange had been used to draw the volatility for the
purpose of fair value calculation.

v. The Company has recognised share based payment expense of ¥ 6.73 Lakh (March 31, 2019: Nil) during the year as a proportionate cost.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

36 Capital

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

1. Safeguard it's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, and

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term
and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through fundings and
operating cash flows generated.

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years
except those incorporated on account of regulatory amendments. However, they are under constant
review by the Board.

As an NBFC, the RBI requires the Company to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets
ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier | and Tier Il capital of 15% of the aggregate risk weighted assets.
Further, the total of the Tier Il capital cannot exceed 100% of the Tier | capital at any point of time.
The capital management process of the Company ensures to maintain a healthy CRAR at all the
times.

The Company has complied with the RBI notification number RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109122.10.106}2019-20 dated 13th March,2020,"Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards".

Please refer note (xxii) - "Capital Adequacy Ratio" under additional disclosures related to RBI (note
51) for the detailed working of the same.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
{Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for tha year ended 315t March, 2020

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
Tha table below shows an enalysis of assets and kabities ed according to when they are expected to be recoversd or sattiad. ¥ in lakh)
As at As at As at
Particulars 3 rch, 2020 315t March, 2019 01st April, 2018
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months maonths months
Assets
Financial assats
Cash and cash equivalents 1.844.03 - 184403 458812 - 4,580.12 50579 = 505.79
Bank batance other than cash and cash equivalents above 1,442.36 80741 224077 640,00 38331 1,033.31 107.28 - 107.28
Recaivablas 14.97 3 14497 446 - 4.48 - = -
Loans 28.793.42 14.526.16 44319 58 14,184 83 7459 65 21,644 54 704485 371265 11,857.30
Cther financial assets 235.69 424.85 BE0.64 3818 ars2 Tam 454 2764 3z1a
Non-financial assets
Current tax assats {nat) - 108,68 108 68 - 1.18 1.16 1.18 118
Property, plant and equipment = 14727 147.27 7 7 2338 2338
Right of Use - Prermises 1989 1989 53.28 53.28 B1.75 .75
Goodwil 2,501.35 2,5601.35 = 1,578.60 1,578.60 = 1.578.60 1,578.60
Intangitie Assats - 1176 176 = = - 5 & -
Other non-financial assels 8477 = 8477 102.35 - 10235 7312 2 7312
Total assets 33,305.24 18,547.46 51,942.70 19,557.01 9,600.65 28,157.66 B,635.38 543520 14,070.58
Liabilities
Financlal liabilities
Trade payabies = a
i) totad outstanding dues of micro enterprizes and small enterprises L
(I} total outstanding dues of craditors ather than micre enterprises 103.03 10303 90.25 s an25 115.43 . 11543
and smal enterprises
Debt securities £.983.08 7.107.24 13.00122 26,52 BETETI 6,805.85 399 600.00 603.98
Borrowsngs (other than debt securities) 22.037.01 788276 2971977 11,886 48 5.561.31 17.247.77 495008 5,038 .84 9.988.80
Subordinate Liabiities 538 1.000 00 1.005 38 * S - = = -
Other financial abiities 417 48 a7 42055 46.91 828 56.19 49.37 4818 a7 56
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax lakiliies (nat) . 5125 5125 = = =
Provisions 168.33 33mn 2.06 11.10 2016 4.28 485 013
Deferred tax labiities (Nat) 2 14083 = 4838 4838 - 2673 /73
Other non-financial liabiities 9799 or.eg 5548 = 55.49 28.06 = 29.08
Total liabilities 28,661.20 5, 44,812.48 11,924.00 12,560.05 5152.19 10,870.80
& 7,330.22 7,632.92 3,483.18 3,159.78
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
As at As at As at
|Particutars otstapr, | S2sh Others  [3tstharcn, | S2sh Others | 31st March,
2018 2019 2020
Debt secunities including interast acerued thereon 603.99 6,407.00 {105.34) 6,805.65 TA26.00 (1.240.43) 13,001.22
Baorrowings ather than debt securties including interest accrued tharaon 8,988 90 TATI A5 a5.42 17, 24777 345086 802114 29.719.77
|Suberdinated liabiises 4 . 2 t 1,000.00 538 1,005.38
Lease kabiiies 8856 {48.00) 1085 5341 (83.34) 2138 ) 1145
Total liabilities from financing activitias 10,681.45 13,534.45 (9.07)| 24.206.83 11.813.52 7,807.48 43,827.82




39

Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Jiabifity in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under

current market conditions (1., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is diractly observable or estimated using a valuati hinl
Financial Instrument by Category (% in lakh
As at As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 o1st April, 2018
Particulars < Fair Value © Fair Value g Fair Value
m:::: :all::ﬁt through other Amortised thir::: :a“:;m through other Amortised m::::: :a"::m through other Amortised
an p comprehensive Cost an P comprehensive Cost HEE comprehensive Cost
or loss or loss + or loss 2
income income income
Financial Asset
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,844.03 - - 4,589.12 - - 505.79
Bank balance other than
cash and cash equivalents - - 2,249.77 - 1,033.31 = - 107.28
above
Trade raceivables - = 14.97 - - 4.46 3 = 2
Loans - - 4431958 = - 21,644.54 - - 11,657.30
Other financial assets - - 660.64 - - 7i71 - - 32.18
Total Financial Assets = - 48,088.99 - - 27,345.14 - - 12,302.55
Financial Liability
Trade payables - - 103.03 - - 99.25 - - 115.43
Debt securities including _ 3 3 3
ey - - 13,081.22 6,905.65 B03.9%
ings (other than debt
securities) including accrued - - 29.719.77 - - 17,2477 - = 9,668.50
interest
Subordinate Liahifties - - 1,006.38 - = - - - -
Other financial liabiliies - - 420.55 - - 56.18 - - §7.56
Total Financial Liabilities - - 44,339.95 - - 24.308.86 - - 10,805.88
Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judg ts and estimates made in determining the fair values of tha financial i that are (a) gnised and d at fair value and (b) measured at
amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
|assified its financial | ts into the three levels pi ibed under the i jard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Gompany is the current bid price. These instrumants are included in levell,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivali Is ined using valuati i which imise the use
of chsarvable market data and rely as lifle as possible on entily-specifi i If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one oF more of the significant inputs is not based on ebservable market data, the instrumant is included in level 3. This s the case for unlisted equity securities.

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the earrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does
not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilties.

{€in lakh)
As at As at As at

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost Falr value 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 01st April, 2018
forahich (skvabmixclaohces bRIarey m&:f Fair Value mﬁ? Fair Value | Carrying Amount| Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents Level 1 1,644.03 1,844,023 4,568.12 458812 505.79 505.79
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents above Level 2 224877 224977 1,033.31 1,033.31 107.28 107.28
Receivables
{l) Trade receivables Level 3 14.87 14.87 446 4.45
{Il) Other receivables
Loans Level 3 44,318.58 44.319.58 21,644.54 21 644,54 11,657.30 11,657.30
Other financial assels Level 3 BB0.64 66064 737 7371 3218 32.18
Financial liabilities
Fayables
{Trade payables Level 3 103.03 103.03 99.25 9925 115.43 115.43
{IySther Payables
Debt securities Level 2 13,091.22 13,081.22 6,905.65 680565 603.98 602.99
Borrowings (other than debt securities) Level 2 29,719.77 29,718.77 17.247.77 17,247.77 0,088.90 0,085.90
| Subordinate i 5 Level 2 1,005.38 1,005.38 - - - -
Other financial liabiities Level 3 420.55 42055 56.19 56.18 97.58 97.56 |
Motes:
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pank halances other than cash and cash equi vables, ather jals assets, payables, short term borrowings and ather financial

liabilities are considered to be approximately equal to their fair values due to their short term nature,

Valuati hodologies of fi ial not d at fair value
The fair values of loans and svables, b ings, debt and inate Fabilities are | using & portfolio-based approach, grouping leans as far as possible into homogenous
groups based on similar charactenstics. This fair value is then reduced by impalrment allowance which is already calculated incorporating probabilty of defaults and loss given defaults to arrive al

fair value net of risk.

There are ho transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. Similarly, thers were no transfers from or transfer to level 3.
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40 Leases
The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
(€ in lakh)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2020 | March, 2019
Bal as at the begil g of the year 53.41 88.55
Additions during the year 16.74 3.52
Finance cost accrued during the year 4.65 7.34
Deletions during the year - -
Rent paid in advance (10.09)
Paymant of lease liabilities during the year (63.25) (48.00)
Balance as at the end of the year 11.46 53.41

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

(% in lakh)
Particulars Asat3ist | Asat3fst | Asat1st April,
March, 2020 | March, 2019 2018
Less than one year 17.00 47.19 45.17
One to five years 6,18 9,93 53.92
More than five years - - -
Total 23.19 5712 89.08

The amounts considered above are actual cash oulflows. The lease liability in the balance sheet is the present value of these amounts as on the reporting date

The fellowing is the movement in right of use assets;

(€ in lakh)
For the year | For the year
= ended ended
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2020 2019
Depreciation on Right of Use assets 50.61 421
Interest expense on lease liability 465 7.34
Total cash outflow for leases (rental payments) 5325 46.00
Additions to Right of Use assats* 17.22 3.64
Carrying value of Right of Use assets 19.89 53.28
“This includes right of use assets created on account of security deposits,
s at 31st 019 (%in lakh
; Carrying Gto12 1yearto 3| Over3
Particulars T upto 3 months | 3 to 6 months inoithe year year
Lease liabilities 57.12 11.75 11.77 23.67 9.93 -
at 31st March, 2020 (¥ in lakh
t Carrying Gto 12 1yearto3| Over3
Particulars prishe: upto 3 months | 3 to 8 months aethe year At
Lease liabilities 23.19 6.95 3.66 6.39 6.18 -

The amounts considered above are actual cash outflows. The lease liability in the balance sheet is the present value of these amounts as on the reporting date,

The Company has taken various office premises under lease. Certain agreements provide for cancellation by either parly or certain agraements contain clause for escalation and renewal of

agr . The non-car operating lease agreements are ranging for a period of 3 months to 60 months. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

The discounting rate of 10% has been applied to lease liabilitiss recognised in the balance sheet as at the reporting date .
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the assets are sufficient to meet the abligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

\ ¥



Centrum Microcredit Limited

(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
41 Business Combination

a. Summary of acquisition

In order to further strengthen the Company's foothold in the microfinance business, the Company entered into a Business Transfer Agreement
(BTA) on 10th October, 2019 with Altura Financial Services Limited (a Delhi based NBFC-MFI) through which the Company acquired the

microfinance business of the latter as a going concern on a slump sale basis with effect from 1st November, 2019.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration Z in lakh
Cash paid 1,877.18

Total purchase consideration 1,877.18

The acquisition date fair values of the assets taken over and liabilities assumed as a result of the acquisition are as follows:
Particulars Zin lakh

Assets taken over:

Microfinance loans 8,800.59

Property, plant and equipment 20.19

Deferred tax assets (on fair valuation) 1.62

Liabilities assumed:

Borrowings from banks (4,383.85)

Borrowings from financial institutions (3.482.72)

Advances received (1.40)

Net identifiable assets acquired 954.43
Calculation of goodwill Z in lakh
Consideration transferred 1,877.18

Less: Net identifiable assets acquired 954.43

Goodwill 922.75

There were no acquisitions in the year ended 31st March, 2019.

b. Purchase consideration - cash outflow
Z in lakh

Particulars FY2020 FY2019

Outflow of cash to acquire the microfinance
business 1,877.18 -

Net outflow of cash - investing activities 1,877.18

Acquisition related costs
Acquisition related costs of ¥ 29.05 lakh are included in other expenses in the statement of profit and loss and in operating cash flows in the
statement of cash flows.

Amount and factors for recognition of goodwill
(1) Amount of goodwill recognised:

¥ 922.75 lakh
The amount of goodwill was determined following the fair valuation method, using the income approach for loan portfolio and borrowings and

cost approach for fixed assets.

(2) Factors for recognition of goodwill: ' '
Since the acquisition cost exceeded the net amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess amount is recorded as goodwill. The

goodwill primarily reflects the excess earning capacity and synergistic effects with the existing business.

Gooduwill is considered as a tax deductible expense. .
Note that the previous year figures are not comparable on account of business combination.
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42 Goodwill Impairment Testing

a. Goodwill
Fin lakh
As at 31st March,| As at 31st March, As at 01st
Particulars 2020 2019 April, 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,578.60 1,578.60 1,578.60
Goodwill arising on acquisitions 922.75 - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,501.35 1,578.60 1,678.60

b. Goodwill impairment assessment

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on the higher of the CGU's (Cash
generating unit's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use, the calculations of which require the use of assumptions. The calculations
of the value in use consider the cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rate.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable segments identified. Hence the entire
business is considered as the cash generating unit for the purpose of allocating goodwill.

This represents the goodwill recognised on acquisition of the microfinance businesses of First Rand Bank and Altura Financial Services Limited.
The Company believes that the carrying amount of the goodwill is recoverable.
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43 Micro, small and medium enterprise
Based on the intimation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006". Accordingly, the disclosures relating to

amounts unpaid as at the year ended together with interest paid /payable are furnished below:

Z in lakh
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 31st March, | 01st April, 2018

2020 2019

The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as - - -
at the end of the year

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier - - -
as at the end of the year
The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, - - -
along with the amount of payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of - - -

delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but

without adding the interest specified under this Act
The amount of interest accrued during the year and - - -
remaining unpaid at the end of the year
The amount of further interest remaining due and - - -
payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium enterprise
Development Act, 2006
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44 First-time adoption

A. Explanation of transition to Ind AS

These Financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind
AS. For pericds up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian
GAAP or previous GAAP).

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at
1st April, 2018 (the Company's date of transition). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows including the balance sheet as at 1st April 2018 and Financial Statement as at 31st March 2019
is set out in the following tables and notes.

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The
Company has applied the following exemptions:

B. Ind AS optional exemptions

1. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian accounting standards permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its
Property, Plant and Equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Asset.
Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value
at the date of transition.

2. Business Combination

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations has not been applied to acquisitions of business, which are considered businesses under Ind AS that occurred
before April 01, 2018. Use of this exemption means that the Indian GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised
under Ind AS, is their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with respective Ind AS.
The Company recognises all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a past business combination, except (i) certain financial assets and liabilities that
were derecognised and that fall under the derecognition exception, and (i) assets and liabilities that were not recognised in the acquirer's balance sheet
under its previous GAAP and that would not qualify for recognition under Ind AS in the balance sheet of the acquiree. Assets and liabilities that do not
qualify for recognition under Ind AS are excluded from the opening Ind AS balance sheet. The Company did not recognise or exclude any previously
recognised amounts as a result of Ind AS recognition requirements.

3. Financial Instruments

Under Ind AS 108, if an entity measures a financial instrument on initial recognition based on valuation techniques that only use observable market data
or current market transactions in the same instrument, and the fair value at initial recognition is different from the transaction price, then it is required to
recognise the ‘day one’ gain or loss at initial recognition of this financial instrument. Ind AS 101 allows an entity to apply the ‘day one’ gain or loss
recognition requirement of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has opted for
this exemption to recognise the 'day one’ gain or loss on initial recognition arising due to difference in transaction cost and fair value prospectively for
transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

Further, Ind AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured at amortised cost if it meeats two tests that deal with the nature of the business that holds
the assets and the nature of the cash flows arising on those assets. A first-time adopter must assess whether a financial asset meets the conditions on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

C. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1. Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those

estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2018 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made
estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

a) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

b) FVTPL- Equity and Debt Instruments

c¢) Corporate Guarantee Adjustment

2, Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

Classification of financial asset is required to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Further, if
it is impracticable for the Company to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ind AS 109 Financial instruments, the fair value of the
financial asset or the financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be the new gross carrying amount of that financial asset or the new
amortised cost of that financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS.

3. De-recognition of financial assets
As per Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian accounting standards, an entity shall apply the exception to the retrospective application in case of
“Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities" wherein a first-time adopter shall apply the Derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 Financial
instruments prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has opted not to re-evaluate financial
assets derecognized in the past including those sold to asset restructuring companies.
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March, 2019

Z in lakh
As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars .« |Effect of transition
Previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,591.69 (2.57) 4,589.12
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,033.65 (0.34) 1,033.31
Receivables 3

(I) Trade receivables 4.46 - 4.46

(11} Other receivables ] - =
Loans 19,447.53 2,197.01 21,644.54
Other financial assets 111.88 (38.17) 73.71
Total financial assets 25,189.21 2,155.93 27,345.14
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 1.18 = 1.18
Property, plant and equipment 77.11 5 77.11
Right of Use - Premises - 53.28 53.28
Goodwill 1,578.60 - 1,578.60
Other Intangible assets = " e
Other non-financial assets 102.35 - 102.35
Total non-financial assets 1,759.24 53.28 1,812.52
TOTAL ASSETS 26,948.45 2,209.21 29,157.66
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises 99,25 - 99.25

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises - - =

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises = = 3
Debt securities 7,033.92 (128.27) 6,905.65
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14,549,.38 2,698.39 17.247.77
Subordinated liabilities - - -
Other financial liabilities 228.99 (172.80) 56.19
Total financial liabilities 21,911.54 2,397.32 24,308.86
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 51.25 - 51.25
Provisions 20.16 - 20.16
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 104.40 (56.02) 48.38
Other non-financial liabilities 55.99 (0.50) 55.49
Total non-financial liabilities 231.80 (56.52) 175.28
EQUITY
Equity share capital 4,952 83 - 4,952,83
Other equity (147.72) (131.59) {279.31)
Total equity 4,805.11 (131.59) 4,673.52
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 26,948.45 2,209.21 29,157.66

“The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division Ill of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of this note. After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 1st April, 2018

Zin lakh
As at 1st April, 2018
Particulars Previous GAAP* Effect of transition Ind AS
to Ind AS

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 505.79 - 505.79
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 107.28 - 107.28
Receivables

(l) Trade receivables - - o

(Il) Other receivables = " -
Loans 11,803.59 (148.29) 11,657.30
Other financial assets 36.19 (4.01) 32.18
Total financial assets 12,452.85 (150.30) 12,302.55
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 1.18 - 1.18
Property, plant and equipment 23.38 - 23.38
Right of Use - Premises - 91.75 91.75
Goodwill 1,578.60 - 1,578.60
Other Intangible assets - - -
Other non-financial assets 73.12 - 73.12
Total non-financial assets 1,676.28 91.75 1,768.03
TOTAL ASSETS 14,129.13 (58.55) 14,070.58
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 115.43 - 115.43
Other payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises “ » "

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises - - =
Debt securities 603.99 - 603.99
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 10,076.42 (87.52) 9,988.90
Subordinated liabilities & i g
Other financial liabilities 9.00 88.56 97.56
Total financial liabilities 10,804.84 1.04 10,805.88
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) = = :
Provisions 9.13 - 9.13
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 41.69 (14.96) 26.73
Other non-financial liabilities 30.56 {1.50) 29.06
Total non-financial liabilities 81.38 (16.46) 64.92
EQUITY
Equity share capital 3,463.31 - 3.463.31
Other equity (220.40) (43.13) (263.53)
Total equity 3,242.91 (43.13) 3,199.78
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 14,129.13 (58.55) 14,070.58

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division Il of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of this note. After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

¥ in lakh
Effect of
Transition to Ind

Particulars Previous GAAP* AS Ind AS
l. Income
Revenue from operations
Interest income 4,104.29 (50.81) 4,053.48
Fees and commission income 11.31 - 11.31
Net gain on fair value changes 19.38 - 19.38
Other operating revenue 77.73 (68.79) 8.94
Total revenue from operations 4,212.71 (119.60) 4,093.11
Other income 33.32 - 33.32
Total income 4,246.03 (119.60) 4,126.43
Il. Expenses
Finance costs 2,167.30 45.89 2,213.19
Impairment on financial instruments 104.68 (13.13) 91.55
Employee benefits expenses 1,178.61 1.65 1,180.26
Depreciation and amortisation 34.28 42,11 76.39
Other expenses 564.99 (45.01) 519.98
Total expenses 4,049.86 31.51 4,081.37
Profit before tax 196.17 (151.11) 45,06
Tax expense:
Current tax 60.77 B 60.77
Deferred tax charge 62.71 (41.52) 21.19
Total tax expense 123.48 (41.52) 81.96
Profit/ (loss) for the year 72.69 (109.59) (36.90)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans - 1.65 1.65
Income tax relating to above items - (0.46) (0.46)
Other comprehensive income - 1.19 1.19
Total comprehensive income 72.69 (108.40) (35.71)

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division Ill of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of this note. After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.

D. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian accounting standards requires an entity to reconcile total equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for
prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

1. Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March, 2019 and 01st April, 2018

Z in lakh
As at
Particulars Notes to first As at 01st
time adoption 31st March, 2019 April, 2018
Total equity (shareholders' funds) as per previous GAAP 4,805.12 3,242.9
Adjustments:
Fair valuation of interest free lease security deposits 3 (0.17) (0.03)
EIR adjustments on loans 2 (184.78) (41.30)
Impact of Ind AS 116 on leased premises (2.84) 0.72
EIR adjustments on borrowings 1 (13.05) (1.44)
Fair valuation of financial guarantee given by parent company 1 16.12 -
Provision for expected credit losses on loan assets/ fixed deposits 5 (2.90) (16.03)
Deferred tax impact of Ind AS adjustments 7 56.02 14.95
Total adjustments (131.60) (43.13)
Total equity as per Ind AS 4,673.52 3,199.78
p—
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Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

2. Reconciliation of profit and loss for the year

% in lakh

Particulars

Notes to first
time adoption

For the year
ended
31st March, 2019

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP

Adjustments:

Fair valuation of interest free lease security deposits

EIR adjustments on loans

Impact of Ind AS 116 on leased premises

EIR adjustments on borrowings

Fair valuation of financial guarantee given by parent company
Provision for expected credit losses on loan assets/ fixed deposits
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Deferred tax impact on above items

Total adjustments

Profit after tax as per Ind AS

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
Tax impact on above

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

w

- o ;= -

72.70

(0.14)
(143.49)
(3.56)
(11.61)
(3.80)
13.13
(1.65)
41.52

(109.60)

(36.90)

1,65
(0.46)

(35.71)

3. Impact of Ind AS adoption on statement of cash flows for the year ended on 31st March, 2019

Z in lakh
Particulars Note no. Previous GAAP* | Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flows generated from/ (used) in operating activities 1 (8,234.74) 2,615.68 (10,850.43)
Net cash flows generated from/ (used) in investing activities (68.63) 0.00 (68.63)
Net cash flows generated from/(used) in financing activities 2 12,389.27 (2,615.68) 15,004.96
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,085.90 (0.00) 4,085.90
Cash and cash equivalents as at 01st April, 2018 505.79 - 505.79
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2019 4,591.69 (0.00) 4,591.69

Notes

1. The adjustments are due to securitisation of loans and EIR adjustments.

2. The adjustments are due to securitisation under borrowings and EIR adjustments.

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements i.e. basis Division Ill of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of this note. After reclassification, effect has been given for transition adjustments.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

NOTES TO FIRST TIME ADOPTION

1. Borrowings (including debt securities and subordinate liabilities)

Under previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis
over the period of borrowing. Under Ind AS, such transaction costs are netted off from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These
transaction costs are then recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of such borrowings as part of the interest expense by applying
the effective interest rate method.

2. Loan assets
Under previous GAAP, transaction costs received towards origination of loan assets were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS,

such transaction costs are adjusted from the carrying amount of loans on initial recognition. These transactions costs are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss over the tenure of the such loans as part of the interest income. However, considering the volume of the transactions, the processing fee
income has been amortised on a straight line basis over the tenure of the loan.

3. Security deposits paid

Under previous GAAP, security deposits were initially recognised at transaction price. Subsequently, finance income was recognised based on
contractual terms, if any. Under Ind AS, such security deposits are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost
determined using the effective interest rate. Any difference between transaction price and fair value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless it quantifies for recognition as some other type of asset,

4. Financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Under previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were carried at cost or market value whichever is lower. Under Ind AS, such investments are carried
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

5. Impairment of loan assets
Under previous GAAP, the Company created impairment allowance on loan assets basis the provisioning norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI'). Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss (‘ECL') model,

6. Securitisation

Under previous GAAP, the Company used to de-recognise the securitised loan assets and excess interest spread income was recognised on receipt
basis. Under Ind AS 109, securitised loan assets does not meet the de-recognition criteria and accordingly, the Company continues to recognise such
loan assets and in addition recognises a liability for the amount received. Accordingly, securitised loan assets and related liability is measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method.

7. Deferred tax impact on adjustments
Retained eamings and statement of profit and loss have been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with corresponding impact to
deferred tax, wherever applicable.

8. Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in the profit and loss for the period, unless a standard requires
or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit and loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other
comprehensive income’ include re-measurements of defined benefit plans and their corresponding income tax effects. The concept of other
comprehensive income did not exist under the previous GAAP.




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

45 COVID-19 Impact

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant
impact and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities.
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package
dated 27th March, 2020 and 17th April, 2020 and in accordance therewith, the Company has adopted
a policy and offered a moratorium of up to three months on the payment of all principal amounts
and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between 1st March, 2020 and 31st May, 2020 to eligible
borrowers classified as standard and up to 30 dpd, even if the said amounts were overdue on 29th
February, 2020, excluding the collections already made in the month of March 2020. Extension of
such moratorium benefit to borrowers as per the COVID-19 Regulatory package of the RBI by itself is
not considered to result in significant increase in credit risk as per Ind AS 109 for staging of accounts.
The staging classification of accounts as on 31st March, 2020 with respect to assets which were
overdue though and standard and to whom moratorium has been granted was based on the days past
due as on 29th February, 2020 keeping it at standstill (i.e. the number of days past due shall exclude
the moratorium period for the purpose of asset classification as per the policy).

Further, the Company has used relevant indicators of moratorium, considering various measures
taken by Government and other authorities and has made provisions as per the adopted ECL model
for impairment on financial instruments and has also made further provisions as per regulations for all
loans as on 31st March, 2020 under the IRACP (Income Recognition and Asset Classification and
Provisioning) norms of the RBI and additional provisions for loans under moratorium as per
regulations notified. The impact of COVID 19 pandemic is dependent on future developments which is
highly uncertain, therefore the financial impact in subsequent periods may be different than presently
assessed. Further, the management has also evaluated the impact of COVID 19 on all other assets
of the Company and expects them to be recoverable as on date.

In terms of the requirement as per RBI notificaton no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13th March, 2020, on Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 as compared to
provision as per the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms
(including provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 arrived at by
the Company as per the required calculation under the Expected Credit Losses is lower than the
provision required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), as at 31st March, 2020, and
accordingly, the differential amount is appropriated to a separate impairment reserve.

i




Centrum Microcredit Limited
(Formerly known as Centrum Microcredit Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

46 Segment Information
The Company's Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Operating Officer (COQ) identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers
examine the Company's performance on an entity level. The Company has only ane reportable segment L.e. microfinance lendings. The
Company does not have any reportable geographical segment.
Thus the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying value of segment assets and segment liabilities, total costs incurred to acquire
segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation during the period are all reflected in the financial statements. No single customer
contributes more than 10% of the total revenue eamed during the year.
No separate segment reporting is required as per Ind AS 108 Operating Segments

47 Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their enti rety
A) Securitisation

The Company has Securitised certain loans, however the Company has not transfemred substantially all risks and rewards, hence these
assels have not been de-recognised in their entirety.

The following tables provide a summary of the financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred
financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated fiabilities:

(¥ in lakh)

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Particulars

Securitisation

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 855.24 2,960.57
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (other than debt securitias -

measured at amortised cost) 78858 262053
Fair value of assels 855.24 2,980.57

Fair value of associated liabilities 768.38 2,828.53
Net Position at FV -
The amaunts reported above are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.

B) Direct assignment

The Company has sold some loans (measured at amortised cost) by way of direct bilateral assignment, as a source of finance. As per
the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related {o these assets were transferred to the buyar, the assets have been
de-recognised from the Company's balance sheat.

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain/(loss) en
derecognition, per type of asset.

(Zin lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Assignment
Amount of de-recognised financial asset 462343 -
Carrying amount of retained assets at amortised cost* 439.37 -
The amounts reported above are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.

(€ in lakh’

: Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Assignment
Gain on sale of de-recognised financial agsets* 319.25 -

* The amount held as retention is 10% of the total value of assigned loans.
** The gain on direct assignment Includes interest accrual classified under “Interest income on portfolio loans” of # 14.25 lakh and net off
expenses related o the direct assignment transaction of 37.31 lakh.

48 Dividend paid and proposed
The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Further, no dividend is proposed for approval at the Annual General
Meeting.

49 Events occurring after the reporting period
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in the financial statements.

50 Expenditure in foreign currency
There are no expenditures incurred in foreign currency.
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